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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Brooklyn LU

          3  number 663.  Brooklyn Community Board.  Their

          4  16-C050481 PCK application submitted by the

          5  Department of Probation and the Department of

          6  Citywide Administrative Services.  Pursuant to

          7  Section 197-c of the New York City Charter for site

          8  selection and acquisition of property located at

          9  2440 Fulton Street, Block 1554, p/o Lot 16, the

         10  Borough of Brooklyn, Community District 16, for use

         11  as an alternative to detention program facility.

         12                 This facility is located in

         13  Councilman Dilan's district, and I would appreciate

         14  if Councilman Dilan would make a statement.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.  I thank you just for allowing me to make a

         17  brief statement before I leave. I have a scheduled

         18  meeting in my office across the street. While this

         19  application is in my district, I appreciate you

         20  allowing me to speak as the Committee opens.

         21                 I just want to speak to my experience

         22  so far with this project.  I believe the Department

         23  of Probation has been embarking on this project for

         24  approximately eight months, and has yet to contact

         25  my office, or open up any discussions with my office
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          2  regarding this project.

          3                 So aside from what I've been given

          4  from our competent Land Use staff, that's all I know

          5  about this project.  I have not had any discussions

          6  whatsoever with the Department of Probation on this

          7  project and I guess, in light of that, I know some

          8  believe that on the merits, this may be a good

          9  project, but it's hard for me to evaluate what the

         10  merits of the project are, since I haven't had any

         11  discussions.

         12                 From what I understand, in talks with

         13  the Administration, a meeting was supposed to try to

         14  be convened with my office some time tomorrow.  As

         15  of yet, I've just contacted my district office, and

         16  they haven't received any word as far as a meeting

         17  being scheduled.  So what I'm going to do, is hold

         18  out until the absence of that meeting tomorrow.  But

         19  I will say that should a meeting not occur, and the

         20  Department does not contact me, whether this project

         21  is meritorious our not, I would recommend

         22  disapproval of this project until my office is

         23  allowed to give this project due consideration.

         24                 Some of the concerns that I do have

         25  just in reading the documents that the Land Use
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          2  staff has prepared for me, is -- one of my major

          3  concerns is that it's going to be sited in the same

          4  facility as a New York City public school.

          5                 And then, the second concern that I

          6  have is, that this facility will also house

          7  individuals from the borough of Queens, there's a

          8  Queens facility that's being closed, and they're

          9  going to merge into one facility so that Brooklyn

         10  will house what will  -- not house, but just use the

         11  facility for Brooklyn and Queens residents.

         12                 Now, that being said, I'm going to

         13  remain objective. I'm going to listen, and again, I

         14  can't state that I have a scheduled meeting in my

         15  office across the street.  I look forward to meeting

         16  with the Department of Probation tomorrow, should

         17  they call.  If they don't call, then I have to stick

         18  with my recommendation for disapproval.  But I'm

         19  going to remain objective. And I'm going to say that

         20  so far, the process has left a big distasteful

         21  feeling with me.  Again, whether it be meritorious

         22  or not.  But again, I'll remain objective.  I look

         23  forward to meeting with them.  I look forward to

         24  hearing what they have to say on the project.  And I

         25  look forward to give input on the project and I look
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          2  forward to this Committee to I guess, give a further

          3  insight on the project.  But with all due

          4  considerations to my schedule, I've had things that

          5  I've had set up and we're going to accommodate them

          6  tomorrow on very short notice, I might add.  And I

          7  have to go to a meeting that I've had scheduled for

          8  some time now.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you

         10  Councilman Dilan.  And I would just like to take

         11  another few seconds before you leave.  I just want

         12  to make a recommendation to my colleagues that I

         13  think that this type of behavior is unconscionable.

         14  It's unconscionable, it's unacceptable.  It doesn't

         15  matter.  I think what Councilman Dilan just said, is

         16  absolutely right.  The merit of the project is

         17  irrelevant.  But the Council Members that represent

         18  the communities, I think we want to believe, and I

         19  think it's pretty accurate that we understand our

         20  neighborhood because we live in them.  Many of us

         21  have grown up in these neighborhoods.  And we

         22  understand some of the issues that some may not.

         23                 But forgetting about that, just human

         24  decency. There's a Council Member that's been

         25  elected by the people in that community, deserves
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          2  the courtesy  -- doesn't mean an agreement, but

          3  deserves the courtesy when a project like this is

          4  supposed to take place to be called and informed

          5  about it.

          6                 So, if there's anyone from the

          7  Administration present, and I'm not sure there is,

          8  even though I'm staring at him, I would say that the

          9  best thing you could do is go back and tell them to

         10  apologize.  Because everybody makes mistakes.  If

         11  it's a mistake, then that's fine.  You know.

         12  Everybody makes mistakes. And you apologize.  You

         13  say, we're sorry, and you move on.  But if that's

         14  not the case, as far as I'm concerned, and of

         15  course, that's just one vote, I am not even really

         16  interested in listening at all today about this

         17  project unless the Council of the Land Use Committee

         18  suggests that we do, I'm not interested in listening

         19  to it at all.  Unless Gail Benjamin who is the boss

         20  says otherwise.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I have no

         22  problem with the hearing going forward.  And for the

         23  Committee to thoroughly review the project.  But I

         24  just wanted to just for the record, just let my

         25  colleagues know what has happened to this point.  I
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          2  know that we're --  and I'm agreeing to this because

          3  I know we're near end of session, and I just wanted

          4  to stay above board, and take the high road and

          5  allow the entire process to play out even though I

          6  feel I've done everything right, and some things

          7  have been done wrong. But I think as a general rule,

          8  I think that the Committee should thoroughly review

          9  the project.  I'll take time to review the --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No problem.  As a

         11  courtesy to the Council Member of the district, only

         12    -- I would recommend that we listen to it only

         13  because you're suggesting that.

         14                 Councilman Barron.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, Eric, I

         16  don't think we should.  This is ridicules.  Because

         17  it went to the Community Planning Board, the

         18  Community Board, in August.  Then it went to the

         19  Borough Board in September.  Then it goes to the

         20  Planning Commission in November.  And in all of

         21  those months, we shouldn't listen to nothing.  I

         22  mean, when they meet with you, then let them come

         23  back and then after we talk with you we should

         24  listen to them. This is ridiculous.  And Gail is not

         25  the boss.  Don't come over here.  I mean, do what
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          2  you want to do, Mr. Chair, but this is absurd.

          3  Because when you let them get away with this kind of

          4  disrespect, it continues.  We shouldn't listen to

          5  anything today. And we should make them meet with

          6  the Council Person, and then, put them on the

          7  calendar some other time, and have a hearing some

          8  other time on it.  After they properly move it in a

          9  respectful way.  This is absurd.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you

         11  Councilman Barron.

         12                 Well, since I'm the Chair, and I just

         13  do want to mention, --  Are you the Chair?  What's

         14  going on here?  Who is running this meeting?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Of course.  If

         16  you're saying the clock is running out, and if we

         17  don't have a hearing we have to we have to prove it,

         18  then let's vote it down.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is there a

         20  compromise to hear it and not vote today?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Yes.  That's

         22  what Council Member would like to have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Fine.  So then we

         24  will  -- I think that's what we will do.  And during

         25  that, that's what I think Councilman Dilan suggested
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          2  and --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You're sending

          4  a mixed signal.  If we can have a hearing and not

          5  vote today, then the clock didn't run out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Can I explain?

          7  Gail, even if you're the boss, and I do think you're

          8  the boss, by the way, is that --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Vote it down.

         10  Let them start all over.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is that today,

         12  whatever we do today is incidental.  It seems clear

         13  that we're going to get the information.  It has no

         14  impact.  What we're doing is, we're house cleaning.

         15  We're getting rid of at least one part of whatever

         16  may or may not take place.  When we actually vote,

         17  we either vote it up or down.  And we don't have to

         18  go through  -- even though they seem like two fine

         19  people, we don't have to listen to that post

         20  testimony next week.  So I think if Eric, if

         21  Councilman Dilan is satisfied with that arrangement,

         22  I'm satisfied.

         23                 I just want to mention as well, just

         24  as a distraction, that this -- is this the last

         25  Landmarks meeting before the end of the year?  So I
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          2  just wanted to mention that it was an honor, or it

          3  is an honor, I'm not sure it was.  We'll find out in

          4  January, being the Chair of the Landmarks Committee.

          5    I want to thank my colleagues, Councilman Koppell,

          6  Council Member Palmer, Council Member Barron, even

          7  those that are not here.  Councilman Oddo,

          8  Councilman Comrie, and Councilman Perkins.  It's

          9  been an honor working together with you.  Very

         10  special one.

         11                 I know that the rumors have it that

         12  every single candidate for Speaker has been asked to

         13  make sure that I do not remain the Chair of the

         14  Landmarks Committee in order to get the support from

         15  the members, and they have all agreed.  But it

         16  really doesn't matter.  Because it's been good

         17  making all the trouble we've been able to do up

         18  until this point.  So I thank you all for the good

         19  times, and look forward to a very happy and healthy

         20  year for everyone especially those of my colleagues

         21  on this Committee.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         23  if I may be heard.  I think what's being attempted

         24  here is an end run around your subcommittee.

         25  Because, and I would like Gail to listen to this
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          2  too.  And by the way, I would like to say that I

          3  respect the staff of this Council enormously, and I

          4  respect Gail enormously. But no staff member here is

          5  the boss.  This Council is run by the members of

          6  this City Council.  And I mean it seriously.  There

          7  are some staff people, and I don't include Gail

          8  among these, who think they're the boss.  They're

          9  not the boss.  Not so long, at least not to me,

         10  they're not the boss.  And I think it's foolish for

         11  us to sometimes regard them that way.  They perform

         12  very good service, they're not the boss.

         13                 I don't think this should be the last

         14  meeting of the Landmarks.  And if they're not the

         15  boss, they should also listen if a Council Member is

         16  asking them to listen.

         17                 Maybe you could find out after I

         18  finish speaking, or I'll wait until you finish.

         19                 I assume that the rush is to try and

         20  get this passed before the end of the year.  If that

         21  is so, I think the Landmarks Committee should vote

         22  on it.  Not that we should have a hearing today, and

         23  then it go to the full Committee, and we not have a

         24  vote on it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: If I may
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          2  interject, we will be voting on it.  We're voting on

          3  it next week.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well then we

          5  will not  -- this is not the last meeting then.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That's true.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You announced

          8  it was the last meeting.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm sorry.  I

         10  stand corrected.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, as long

         12  as we will have another meeting so that we will vote

         13  on it, and not abdicate our responsibility --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, no.  I'm

         15  sorry.  It was my mistake.  I apologize.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  Very

         17  good.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you want to

         19  get into the mix?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: This is why

         21  we've all requested that you be removed as Chairman.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I'm advocating

         23  that you stay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You see.  Okay.

         25  If you insist. Okay.  We will now hear testimony.
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          2  Is there anyone else?  Leroy, don't you want to say

          3  something?  No?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: There's no

          5  camera in the room.  Yes, I'll say something.  You

          6  know, I'm sorry I missed the beginning of this

          7  argument.  And I clearly support the Chair, and I'd

          8  like you to stay for four more years.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         10  much.  Is David Weprin here?  Would he like to say

         11  something?

         12                 Pamela Hardy, for the Department of

         13  Probation and -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Mr. Chair, so

         15  there's no vote today.  So can I be excused, because

         16  I have senior luncheon in my district that starts at

         17  noon.  So if --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Absolutely.  Can

         19  we just mention before you leave, that Monday,

         20  December 19th, at 9:45 AM, we will be voting on this

         21  item.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  Is

         23  there copies?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Pamela Hardy and

         25  Johnnie Mae Howard.  You just have to push the
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          2  button, and identify yourself for the record.

          3                 MS. HOWARD: Johnnie Mae Howard.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And whoever is

          5  going to testify.

          6                 MS. HARDY: Pamela Hardy.

          7                 MS. HOWARD: Okay, Johnnie Mae Howard.

          8    Respectfully acknowledging that Chair and

          9  Committee Members.  I'm Johnnie Mae Howard, the

         10  Branch Chief of Family Court Services for the New

         11  York City Department of Probation.  And before I

         12  even begin, I offer apology to Councilman Dilan, and

         13  look forward to meeting with him tomorrow.  And ask

         14  that we be forgiven, because it was no concerted

         15  oversight on our part.  But it's really just based

         16  on our ignorance of the process.  And why he was

         17  left out of our reaching out to those in the

         18  community.  So again, I apologize on behalf of the

         19  New York City Department of Probation, and look

         20  forward to meeting with him.

         21                 If I might just briefly give an

         22  overview of the program, and why we are in essence

         23  seeking at least agreement through the ULURP process

         24  at 2440 Fulton Street for the Brooklyn/Queens ATD

         25  program.  The Alternative to Detection program is
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          2  one that has been in existence with the Department

          3  of Probation since 1971.  It is a program that in

          4  essence, is a gift from the court for young folks,

          5  adolescents that find themselves before a Family

          6  Court judge regarding a rearrest.  The program is a

          7  day program, that allows the judge an alternative to

          8  send that child to where they can be intensively

          9  supervised throughout their court proceedings.

         10                 The average age of an adolescent

         11  coming to the program is 15 years old, although the

         12  age range can be anywhere from 12 to 17.  The time

         13  that they are with us is approximately 60 days.  And

         14  again, during that time, they are intensively

         15  supervised by the Department of Probation.  There is

         16  a Department of Education component, where they are

         17  in class from 8:30 until 2:40 on a daily basis.  The

         18  program hours are from eight to eight, and depending

         19  on what program their paroled to will determine how

         20  long they are there.  The vast majority of the

         21  children are there from eight o'clock in the morning

         22  until four o'clock in the afternoon.

         23                 We have been at this site, at 2440

         24  Fulton Street, and our need to relocate to this site

         25  was precipitated by the fact that the resources that
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          2  were available at our former location, which was the

          3  Brownsville Recreational Center in Brooklyn, as well

          4  as Baysley Park in Queens.  We outgrew.  We outgrew,

          5  and so we had to seek out a larger facility.  When

          6  DCAS presented to us the site at 2440 Fulton Street,

          7  because it is in essence, on the border of Brooklyn

          8  and Queens, we saw it as being a good opportunity to

          9  merge the program.  And have since done that. The

         10  total capacity for the program is 125 youths.

         11                 Again, we are there today, as part of

         12  the ULURP process, to seek a lease agreement at that

         13  locale.  And again, I apologize, and ask that our

         14  ignorance be forgiven, in not reaching out to

         15  Council Person Dilan before now.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Do you have any testimony?

         19                 Can you just push the button please.

         20  And state your name for the record.

         21                 MS. HARDY: Pamela Hardy.

         22                 The only thing that I would like to

         23  add is the fact that the Alternative to Detention

         24  site is a means of allowing youngsters the least

         25  restrictive setting.  And the Family Court Act says
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          2  that we have to do what's in the best interest of

          3  the children, as well as, you know, to protect the

          4  community. Probation Officers are staffed there.

          5  Along with community associates and Board of

          6  Education teachers.  This is a school, and it's just

          7  with Probation Officers.  The youngsters who are

          8  there are escorted to and from the site so that they

          9  make their way home on public transportation.  I

         10  think that's it.  Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         12  much.  Ms. Howard, what did you say your position is

         13  at Probation?

         14                 MS. HOWARD: I am the Branch Chief of

         15  Family Court Services.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: What does that

         17  mean?  How many -- if there's a hierarchy, how many

         18  other levels are there above you?

         19                 MS. HOWARD: There is an Associate

         20  Commissioner, Deputy Commissioner, Commissioner.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.  So I

         22  appreciate your apology, but you are a very humble

         23  and modest person.  I don't believe that it was your

         24  responsibility.  It's nice of you to take the fall.

         25  I think it's somebody else's responsibility.  And
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          2  that's what I believe in my heart.  I may be out of

          3  my mind, but that's not the first time that that's

          4  come up.  So I'm just telling you, I'm not here,

          5  we're not here to draw blood from anybody for the

          6  guild of the sins, but the fact is, that I believe

          7  that there is somebody else responsible for what

          8  happened.  So that person, and that person is -- the

          9  people in your Department know who that is - that's

         10  the person that should speak to Councilman Dilan.

         11  You don't have to take the blame for somebody else

         12  messing things up. That's what I believe.  I may not

         13  know what I'm talking about.  But that's what I

         14  believe.

         15                 Second of all, let's talk about the

         16  details.  Is there a school at this place now?

         17                 MS. HOWARD: There is.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: How many children

         19  are there?

         20                 MS. HOWARD: I don't know the capacity

         21  of the neighboring school.  I know that it is much

         22  larger than our program, and since we have been

         23  there, we have in essence, forged an amicable

         24  relationship.  We have been able to do things like

         25  coordinate emergency activation drills together.
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          2                 The children are separate though.

          3  They enter through separate entrances.  They are

          4  dismissed from separate entrances.  And because of

          5  the hours of our program, there's very little

          6  interaction between the two populations, aside when

          7  we have the planned evacuation emergency drills.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right.  So let me

          9  ask the questions again.  And I'm just trying to get

         10  a picture of what goes on at this site.  2440

         11  Fulton.  Right now, how old are the children, other

         12  than those in your program that are in this school?

         13                 MS. HOWARD: It's a high school.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It's a high

         15  school.  And there's a high school with about how

         16  many children?  About.  You won't have to apologize

         17  for this.

         18                 MS. HOWARD: It's really  -- it would

         19  be difficult for me to say, but again, they are much

         20  larger.  I would say there are probably hundreds.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.  Hundreds

         22  of high school students at this facility.  And how,

         23  the proposal is to bring in about a hundred fifty

         24  you said?

         25                 MS. HOWARD: One hundred and twenty
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          2  five.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: One hundred

          4  twenty five kids that are about the same age, right?

          5                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: They range, but

          7  they're about the same age as the children that are

          8  in the regular program.

          9                 Now, these kids that you want to

         10  bring in, that are on probation, right?

         11                 MS. HOWARD: They are not on

         12  probation, they are --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Clarify that

         14  please.

         15                 MS. HOWARD: Okay.  They are not on

         16  probation --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You said

         18  something, but I wasn't listening carefully.  I'm

         19  sorry.

         20                 MS. HOWARD: They are not on

         21  probation.  They are at the predisposition stages of

         22  a Family Court matter.  There has been no --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Can you stop for

         24  a minute?

         25                 MS. HOWARD: Certainly.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm only

          3  interrupting you because I want to understand.  What

          4  does that mean, predisposition. What you just said.

          5                 MS. HOWARD: It means that there's

          6  been no determination made by a Family Court judge

          7  on their case.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So these children

          9  are stuck in Family Court, right?  Their families

         10  are stuck in court, and they don't know -- I'm not

         11  getting it.  I'm sorry.

         12                 MS. HOWARD: Not their families.

         13  These are children that, based on an arrest, find

         14  themselves before Family Court judge, regarding that

         15  arrest.  They are sent to us during the period of

         16  their trial, the proceedings.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Got it.  Got it.

         18  Now, how often -- now you have other programs like

         19  this in the City?

         20                 MS. HOWARD: There are two other

         21  programs in the City.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: How often, in the

         23  other programs, wherever they may be, how often are

         24  these children arrested again during this process

         25  that they're in -- while they're in the Family Court
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          2  and they're trying to decide what to do with them --

          3  how often do they get arrested again, unfortunately,

          4  for some crime?

          5                 MS. HOWARD: Well, I'm proud to share

          6  that we have a wonderful retention rate, a retention

          7  rate that is in the mid 90s on average, in regards

          8  to our ability to maintain children until their

          9  court proceedings have reached final disposition.

         10                 In regards to those that are

         11  rearrested, it is infinitesimal.  When I look at the

         12  numbers, it is approximately, out of ten juveniles

         13  that we supervise, point five of them get

         14  rearrested.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Point five.  Are

         16  you saying a half a person, is that what you mean?

         17                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.  Out of 20, --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So like out of 20

         19  people, one person.

         20                 MS. HOWARD: Exactly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So when you said

         22  90 percent, you were saying sort of like ten percent

         23  of them get rearrested?

         24                 MS. HOWARD: No, no no.  Ninety

         25  percent --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So what did you

          3  mean by that?

          4                 MS. HOWARD: Our retention rate.  Our

          5  ability to retain them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Oh, that they

          7  stick with the program.  Alright, I myself, first of

          8  all, I was -- we obviously don't have the time, but

          9  it would be -- I would be very interested on other

         10  occasion, if we had the ability beforehand to know

         11  and issue like this, I would like to go down and see

         12  a program. Because I'm finding it very hard  -- I

         13  have a dilemma in my mind about  -- on the one hand,

         14  you have a public school with children, and you

         15  don't want to expose them certainly, to other kids

         16  who've been in trouble.  On the other hand, you're

         17  trying to save a kid who has somewhat gotten into

         18  trouble and you have an ability to set them

         19  straight, especially by putting them somewhat in a

         20  good environment.

         21                 So I have very mixed feelings, and

         22  it's hard for me to touch in my brain, what it's

         23  like.  In the absence of having the time to see it,

         24  I'll leave it to questions to my colleagues, and

         25  we'll see what the Council Member says.

                                                            25

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 Just one minute please.

          3                 Are you in the building already?

          4                 MS. HOWARD: We are.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And how long have

          6  you been there?

          7                 MS. HOWARD: We've been there since

          8  September of 2004.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So you're about a

         10  year and a quarter, or something like that.  And

         11  what authority have you been put into that place?

         12                 MS. HOWARD: At this point, we are

         13  seeking a lease agreement through the ULURP process.

         14    We did receive license to occupy the building.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Who gives the

         16  license?  Who issues the license?

         17                 MS. HOWARD: Again, it's my

         18  understanding that it is through the ULURP process.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The ULURP process

         20  issues the license?  Do you understand?

         21                 MS. BENJAMIN: Gail Benjamin.  A

         22  license agreement is generally a short- term

         23  agreement, an "at will" agreement between a lessee

         24  and a lessor.  As such, since it is not a long- term

         25  arrangement with obligations on either side, it does
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          2  not go through ULURP, but instead, is done

          3  administratively through the DCAS.  And because you

          4  now have  -- basically, it's a month to month

          5  arrangement, where you would have to provide 30 days

          6  notice if you were going to leave, but it does not

          7  give you any property rights in terms of the future,

          8  towards the space.  That is why you were seeking a

          9  lease now.  So the license is not a ULURP item, and

         10  in fact, did not come through this Committee.  This

         11  is our first opportunity to review this matter.

         12                 MS. HOWARD: I stand corrected.  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Just one other

         15  question.  I don't know who is going to answer it.

         16  So in theory, what if they stay there for five more

         17  years?  I mean, why are they here now?

         18                 MS. BENJAMIN: Well, in five years --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Why are they here

         20  now?  They didn't have to get all this aggravation.

         21                 MS. BENJAMIN: They are here now, I

         22  would say, although I'm not representing the

         23  Department, because they seek to have a more

         24  permanent relationship that gives them the rights to

         25  which most lessees desire.  It stabilizes their

                                                            27

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  rent, the landlord also cannot remove them upon 30

          3  days notice.  They can then spend, if they need to,

          4  capital funds on doing repairs or renovations to the

          5  space, which they cannot do under a license

          6  agreement.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm going to take

          8  questions.

          9                 I just want to mention one other

         10  thing.  Is that I know that these kids need space,

         11  but I feel very, very strongly that it sounds to me

         12  like the problem is trying to find space, and I'm

         13  not faulting the Department, but these kids need a

         14  lot more. A lot more than the kids in the regular

         15  public school system need. The kids that are being

         16  placed, it's not enough to find a space where it

         17  will be okay, and you know, maybe integrate them

         18  with regular kids.  These kids have obviously, gone

         19  through very difficult times.  They need better.

         20  They need programs where vocational programs, other

         21  programs where they can have self esteem.  And get a

         22  secure balance that unfortunately, they haven't been

         23  able to get otherwise.  So to  -- I just want to

         24  emphasize that I don't think getting them a space

         25  that will do is enough. And I've heard you mention
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          2  about what the Department is trying to do to make

          3  them succeed.  I'm making a general statement, that

          4  some would say that those children  -- they've been

          5  arrested, whatever else, but you know, let them go

          6  through the system.  We'll see what the they do.  I

          7  would say that we really have to spend a lot more

          8  resources on those kids that have gone through these

          9  difficult times then maybe, then those kids that are

         10  going through the regular system could be able to

         11  help them really through these difficult times.

         12                 Councilman Barron, and then

         13  Councilman Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You know, this

         15  is always a challenging issue.  It's like

         16  homelessness.  You know, they say, well somebody,

         17  they have to be in somebody's community.  So we get

         18  more than our share of homelessness.  Then we had in

         19  Brownsville, the Detention Center.  We wanted a high

         20  school, they gave us a jail.  And they said, well,

         21  at least the youngster who get arrested, you'll be

         22  right in the community.  You don't have to go way

         23  upstate.  But we got a jail.

         24                 Then I'm even entertaining, with

         25  Reverend Youngblood, and others, a community court,

                                                            29

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  to have a community court concept where something

          3  can be adjudicated right in the community, and go to

          4  community centers as opposed to an alternative to

          5  incarceration.

          6                 It's just my concern that all of this

          7  stuff gets dumped in our neighborhood.  And it

          8  becomes a saturation of these kinds of programs,

          9  when I have another kind of vision for my

         10  neighborhood, that talks about a whole lot of other

         11  things like new schools, and houses, and cultural

         12  centers, and job creation programs.  This is a much-

         13  needed service, and the Brownsville Recreation

         14  Center, Greg Jackson is does great work, and that

         15  place be housed there, is you know, the type of

         16  youth that can really deal with the type of youth

         17  that should be dealt with.   Your office was just

         18  there right?  What did you do at Brownsville?

         19                 MS. HOWARD: That was our former

         20  location.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And how many

         22  people did you service there?

         23                 MS. HOWARD: At that time, we were

         24  servicing 60.  A maximum of 60.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Sixty, six
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          2  zero?

          3                 MS. HOWARD: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And what was

          5  the program look like for the day?

          6                 MS. HOWARD: It was akin to the same

          7  program that we have in place now, at 2440 Fulton

          8  Street.  The day was from eight to four, or eight to

          9  eight, depending on what program they were paroled

         10  to, and it entailed academic instruction for the

         11  vast majority of the day, from 8:30 until 2:40.  And

         12  then, after that, there were services, different

         13  groups.  We would liaison with a different

         14  organizations in the community, the Department of

         15  Health treatment programs, mentoring programs to

         16  come in and do groups, and things of that nature.

         17  Because of the Brownsville Recreational Center, we

         18  were also able to make use of their recreational

         19  facilities.  Not the swimming pool, but the

         20  basketball court, yes. And so, it was a program very

         21  much akin to what we have in place at 2440.

         22                 And in regards to the population that

         23  we serve, these children are one and the same.  The

         24  high school that shares the same building that we're

         25  in, we have children that were formerly at that high
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          2  school that wind up in our program.  Again, they

          3  remain with us for about 60 days.  Just until the

          4  case is completed.  I ask that one be mindful that a

          5  determination has not been made, and there are

          6  children that come through our doors who have their

          7  cases dismissed.  Or adjourned in contemplation of

          8  dismissal, or our placed on probation, and

          9  ultimately are allowed to return to their community

         10  schools.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: That age range

         12  is like 15 to 18 you said, roughly.

         13                 MS. HOWARD: The age range is  --  the

         14  average age is 15.  Anywhere from 12 to 17.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Twelve to 17.

         16                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: It's pretty

         18  large gap.

         19                 So of the two facilities, Brownsville

         20  facility, or the high school, which one was better

         21  suited for the type of program that you have, in

         22  terms of the other population being influenced one

         23  way or the other.  Either the youth at the B of C

         24  see, or the youth in the high school.

         25                 MS. HOWARD: Again, the populations
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          2  really don't have opportunities to mix.  And

          3  basically, based on the fact that our hours are

          4  staggered, and so, our kids come in there anytime

          5  from 7:30 to eight o'clock.  They have to be in the

          6  program by eight o'clock.  And then they are

          7  dismissed at four o'clock.  The high school

          8  dismissal is at 2:40.  So, the high school

          9  population has left the area when our kids are in

         10  the midst of dismissal.  And as Associate

         11  Commissioner shared, when they are dismissed, they

         12  are escorted directly to the train station, or are

         13  directed to go to the bus station to leave the area.

         14    And so, there's really not --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: When they

         16  explain to you, whoever your higher ups are,

         17  explained to you what you had to go through in terms

         18  of this process, did they tell you you had to go to

         19  the Planning Board?

         20                 MS. HOWARD: They did.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Did they tell

         22  you you had to go to the Borough Board?

         23                 MS. HOWARD: They did.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And then they

         25  told you the Planning Commission?
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          2                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And they

          4  didn't mention to you about the City Council?

          5                 MS. HOWARD: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Interesting.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Who owns the

          9  school building?  Who is the lessee or landlord?

         10                 MS. HOWARD: Forgive my ignorance, but

         11  I don't know the landlord's name.

         12                 MS. BENJAMIN: Council Member Koppell,

         13  I don't have that name here, but I will get it for

         14  you.  It's a private individual, though.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's peculiar

         16  to me, this is a prior building that's leased by the

         17  DOE for the school, at least partly?

         18                 MS. BENJAMIN: That is correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And what is

         20  the name of the school?

         21                   UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Council

         22  Member Koppell, there are a number of uses in the

         23  building other than the school.  It's a

         24  manufacturing building in the neighborhood.  We have

         25   -- it houses the New York City High School for
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          2  Public Safety; the Puerto Rican Cultural Learning

          3  Center; Good Will Industries is at Prospect Plaza;

          4  Quick Start Placement Centers; New Style

          5  Construction Inc.; The Federation for the Mentally

          6  Disabled; the Ladies Committee for Puerto Rican

          7  Culture; RCC Electric Contractors, Builders, and

          8  Developers, and  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It must be

         10  quite a building.

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And field

         12  offices for New York Transportation.

         13                 It is a mixture of uses in the

         14  building.  It's a pretty large building.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do you have

         16  any other facilities for the youths, I guess you

         17  might call them "at risk" youths?  Do you have any

         18  other facilities that share with a school?

         19                 MS. HOWARD: We do not.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But in the

         21  year you've been there, or year and a little more

         22  than a year, you haven't had any problem with the

         23  kids from the school?

         24                 MS. HOWARD: We have not.  And again,

         25  the principal of the school, Principal Fayson
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          2  (phonetic), we share an amicable relationship.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And she --

          4  it's a woman?

          5                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And she

          7  doesn't oppose having the program there?

          8                 MS. HOWARD: Again, we share an

          9  amicable relationship.  We've orchestrated, as I've

         10  said, evacuation drills together.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would have

         12  liked to ask maybe Gail, or maybe she would assign

         13  someone, I think it would be interesting if someone

         14  from the staff would contact the principal of the

         15  school.  And just ask the principal whether she's

         16  amenable to this.  Because I share the Chairman's

         17  concern here.  It doesn't seem ideal to me to put

         18   "at risk" youth in the same building, even though I

         19  realize they're separate, and there's a different

         20  dismissal time, but if I had a child who was not in

         21  trouble, just going to school and not at risk in any

         22  way, I would be very concerned about that child

         23  going to school in a building with 150 kids who are

         24  at risk.  I mean, it just doesn't sound to me like

         25  an ideal  -- I would be very much opposed to it.
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          2  Very much opposed to it as a parent.  I just would

          3  say, that's just not appropriate. There's too much

          4   -- you know, kids are impressionable at that age.

          5  We all know about kids getting involved with the

          6  wrong kids.  And these kids who are -- I'm not

          7  trying to condemn them all, or say they're all

          8  terrible kids at all.  But they're problem kids.

          9  And so, I'm concerned about that, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 You know, we're asked to approve

         11  sites for public facilities, and I don't exactly

         12  know how far our discretion goes. It's the same sort

         13  of issue with the landmark buildings.  How far do we

         14  substitute our discretion for the discretion of the

         15  City? But I'm very leery about this arrangement.

         16  Now, I'd like to hear what the principal of the

         17  school has to say.  If the principal of the school

         18  says, we haven't had any problem, it's fine.  I'm

         19  not at all concerned about it, that would give me

         20  some comfort.

         21                   UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Council

         22  Member Koppell, in response to your question

         23  concerning ownership, Fulton Center LLC is the

         24  owner.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I guess I was
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          2  curious just because of the unusual arrangement.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I think, in terms

          4  of the request, maybe the Land Use staff can make

          5  sure, if Councilman Dilan is going to have a meeting

          6  with the representatives, that's something maybe he

          7  would want to bring up with the principal in his

          8  district. If you can communicate that.  He may have

          9  that on his mind anyway, but if you can communicate

         10  that Councilman Koppell had a concern.

         11                 Council Member Palma.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Mr. Chair, I

         13  share the sentiments of, and echo my colleagues'

         14  sentiment.  I think my question, and I don't know if

         15  this was answered before, but what kind of impact

         16  does it have on the youth that goes to this program,

         17  that come out of the high school, and then return to

         18  their regular high school after their case is

         19  dismissed, or they no longer have to go through the

         20  program?  Do you see them come through the program

         21  again?  Do they get any kind of flack or pressures

         22  from the school that makes them revert to whatever

         23  problems they had before?

         24                 MS. HOWARD: The vast majority of the

         25  children that come to our program do return back to
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          2  their community schools.  If the court had

          3  stipulated that their case was dismissed, or

          4  adjourned in contemplation in dismissal, we would

          5  not necessarily have contact with them upon their

          6  return to school.

          7                 For those that are sentenced to

          8  probation, though, they are then assigned

          9  supervision Probation Officers who are then

         10  supervising them and monitoring them throughout

         11  their probation sentence.

         12                 In regards to those that wind up

         13  coming back to the program, we do see children that

         14  wind up coming back.  Quite often, they're coming

         15  back on a violation of probation for their failing

         16  to go to school, to their community school.  Is it

         17  often?  No, it's not.  But we do see folks come

         18  back.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I think I asked

         20  my question because I think our goal is to make sure

         21  that youth don't engage in behavior that will put

         22  them at risk.  And we fund a lot of programs, after

         23  school programs, and we want to be  -- I believe

         24  that I want to be more proactive and make sure that

         25  I offer youth all the resources and tools they need
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          2  to get through high school, to go on to college, and

          3  become good citizens.  And when you make-- I have a

          4  difficulty supporting something like this, because

          5  if they come from the high school and go into your

          6  program, and then they go back to the community

          7  schools, and then there's no follow through, and

          8  eventually the youth end up coming back to your

          9  program, then I think we didn't do our job as a

         10  society to make sure that whatever issues brought

         11  them to that place in the first place, were really

         12  addressed.  That we basically put them back into the

         13  community without no follow-up, without any

         14  resources.  And then they continue to engage in the

         15  same behavior.

         16                 So I think the way these programs can

         17  work a little bit better is to have some sort of

         18  follow-up with these kids, whether they're in your

         19  program or not, to see how they're doing, how

         20  they're coping with being back at the community,

         21  because one of the reasons that they may end up

         22  coming back to the program is because they feel all

         23  this pressure from the other kids, taunting them,

         24  you know, you were in jail, you were in a detention

         25  center, you're no good, and something can  -- they
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          2  may be feeling something that they need to lash out,

          3  and eventually end up in the same place.

          4                 MS. HOWARD:  I'd like to respond to

          5  that, in that we are not an alternative to

          6  detention.  It is not a detention center. And I

          7  think maybe one of the things we haven't explained I

          8  guess clearly enough, is that they do receive

          9  services while they are there.  They have

         10  independent living skills taught to them.  They have

         11    --  we're looking into serious illiteracy

         12  programs.  There are libraries.  There are things

         13  that they actually do while they are there.  And we

         14  also expose them to different culture events that

         15  are going on in the City.

         16                 But the youngsters that we have,

         17  those that return, their cases are dismissed, they

         18  are found innocent, their families are there to

         19  support them and take them back in, so we really

         20  have no right to do that.  But for the youngsters

         21  who are placed on probation, they do have a

         22  probation officer who visits the schools, their

         23  regular schools, visits their homes, and is involved

         24  with planning, a plan of action, that the parent,

         25  the child, and the Department feel is the best way
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          2  to keep them out of trouble again.

          3                 And I also think that one of the

          4  things that we try very, very hard to do, is to make

          5  sure that the children are in the right placement.

          6  Often, youngsters get in trouble, and come to us

          7  because they are in the -- I don't want to say the

          8  wrong schools, but they are maybe not in the schools

          9  that they need to be in, and they're evaluated to

         10  the point that when they go back to school, or they

         11  may even go to a different school, that they're

         12  going to a school that is just the one that they

         13  have for their needs.

         14                 And I'd like to say again, that the

         15  Board of Ed, we have -- we are -- the Board of Ed

         16  has teachers and staff there that do the -- pretty

         17  much -- the same thing that they do in the regular

         18  school.  Yes, we need, I agree, more resources for

         19  the type of youth that we're dealing with.  But

         20  definitely, reintegration into the community is not

         21  the same as if they were in a detention center, or

         22  placement and they have to go back.  They're at

         23  home, they're living with their families.

         24                 And the only difference, I think, in

         25  the school, besides the mandatory program for the
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          2  Probation Officers being there, is the fact that our

          3  youngsters come in at eight in the morning, they

          4  don't leave.  They're not in and out for lunch and

          5  breaks like that.  The breaks and the lunch time are

          6  taken within the building.  And when they do leave,

          7  like I said, they're out of the community, whether

          8  the parents are picking them up or whatever. And

          9  that has worked for us for many, many years.  The

         10  number of incidents in the schools that we have,

         11  compared to some of the major schools, or even

         12  smaller schools, is really minuscule.  And I think

         13  maybe that is because we're there.  The officers are

         14  there.

         15                 And, often kids come back, and they

         16  say thank you. And they want to cone back to the

         17  school.  We're like, no, you're finished.  You have

         18  to go.

         19                 So there are benefits.  No one wants

         20  a child to be court involved.  But if they are court

         21  involved, I do think that this is a more humane way

         22  to treat a child instead of putting them in a

         23  detention center or some sort of holding facility.

         24                 And I'd also like to say, very

         25  briefly, and I'll end, is that the youngsters who
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          2  have serious offenses, who have serious problems,

          3  whether they be emotional, or whatever, are not

          4  placed with us.  These are the kids that the judge

          5  thinks should be placed with us.  The reason being,

          6  to keep them in the community, and ensure that

          7  they're going to school during the time that they

          8  are at liberty.  So these are not the youngsters who

          9  are in detention, these are the youngsters who the

         10  judge thinks should be in the community.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And do the

         12  youth that eventually end up leaving the program  --

         13  is there any offer to those youths to come back and

         14  be mentors to other kids that might find themselves

         15  in the same situation?

         16                 MS. HOWARD: Without a doubt.  Without

         17  a doubt.  In fact, come the Spring of the year, May,

         18  when kids are getting out of college, we have many

         19  of our youths that come back.  We have folks that

         20  are gainfully employed, leading productive lives

         21  that come back and have talks and groups with the

         22  population that is currently in place.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         24  colleagues have any other questions?  We've been

         25  joined by Council Member Miguel Martinez.
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          2                 And before we conclude the hearing, I

          3  just wanted to add that despite all the questions

          4  about the care for the kids, and everything else, I

          5  just want to  -- I'm speaking for myself in citing

          6  that by no means am I an expert in any way in taking

          7  care of these children that you, and your Department

          8  have been trying to help.  And really, some of the

          9  things that go on in the City, you know, the

         10  Firemen, the Policemen, the heroes that are running

         11  around, everybody sees.  But really, many of the

         12  people that work for the City that are really

         13  involved in such important jobs such as saving kids

         14  who no one really hears about.  So I just wanted to

         15  tell you that in one sense, at least it was very

         16  gratifying for me, to hear about the wonderful work

         17  that you and your Department do in trying to help

         18  these kids.  And obviously, you are the heroines or

         19  heroes for these children and many generations to

         20  come.  And we, as a City, appreciate very much what

         21  you do.

         22                 One more technical question.  I'm

         23  sorry.  I was hoping to end on that note.  What is

         24  the length of the lease you're seeking?

         25                 MS. HOWARD: I want to defer to my
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          2  Deputy Commissioner.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It might be -- if

          4  you could please make sure that Council Member Dilan

          5  gets that information.

          6                 MS. HOWARD:  Yes, yes we will.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: If you can give

          8  clear  -- if by Monday, we can understand clearly

          9  what the arrangements, we'd appreciate it.

         10                 Thank you very much.  The hearing is

         11  recessed until Monday, December 19th at 9:45 a.m.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 12:40 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 15th day of December 2005.
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          9            I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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